
 

Wednesday, March 8, 2022 
9:00 AM 

Location: Zoom Teleconference 
 
 
 

Our Mission:  
“A community working together to achieve access to safe and affordable. 

 housing for all residents of Genesee County.” 
 

 
A G E N D A  

  
 
 

I.  WELCOME:                                                                                                                     Essence Wilson    
 
II.        COMMUNITY PRESENTATION: 

A.     GHS Training Opportunity                                                                                                            Ebony Levy 
                                                                                                                                        Genesee Health Systems 
 

B.     HOME-ARP Survey                                                                                                                      City of Flint 
                                                                                                                                                                        Suzanne Wilcox 
 

   III.  OLD BUSINESS:                                                                                                                                                       
A.    Approval of  February 2023  minutes                                                                                     Essence Wilson  
B.    Governance Council update                                                                                                                                                                                                          
C.    Nominating Committee  

 
IV.     NEW BUSINESS: 

     A.       MSHDA HOME-ARP Housing Navigation Program (HNP)                                                  Essence Wilson 
     B.       Shelter Diversion                                                                                                                      Shelly Hoffman 

 
V. REPORTS:                                                               

A.     H.A.R.A / GCCARD           Misty Bowers 
B.     Street Outreach & CQI                                          Jim Perlaki 
C.     Coordinated Entry                                                                                                                          Eric Cooper 
D.     HMIS Admin                                                             Travis Buckley 
E.        SOAR                                                                                                     Bill Doub 
F.        Fiscal Reports                                                                                                                      Shearese Stapleton       

                                                                           
    VI. OTHER BUSINESS: 

  A.      CoC Membership Campaign                                                                                                          Tracey Hurd 
  B.      Racial Equity   
  C.      Strategic Planning                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
     

VII. Announcements:           
                Sharing, Client Successes, announcements & opportunities, email for distribution: 
                 flint-geneseecoc@metroflint.org 
 
 

VII.   Adjournment:                       Essence Wilson 
               Next meeting April 12, 2023 9:00 AM Location: Teleconference  

 

mailto:flint-geneseecoc@metroflint.org


1 
 

Flint/ Genesee County CoC Minutes 
Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2023 

9:00 AM Zoom Teleconference Call 
 

Attendance: Anthony Barker, Hope Network; Katie Baxter, Catholic Charities; Linda Bielskis, SOF; Misty Bowers, Catholic 
Charities; Sandra Bryant, OLSHA; Travis Buckley, MCD; Maurice Bush, Wellness; Dwayne Clemons, Hamilton Community 
Health; Sonyita Clemons, Total Life Prosperity; Eric Cooper, MCD; Tina Counterman, SHRC; Judy Creed, YWCA; Veronica 
Daffin, Salvation Army; Yvonne Davis, GCCARD; Gina DeShong, Disability Network; Denise Diller, Crossover; Bill Doub, GHS; 
Ashnee Dunning, Legal Services of Eastern Michigan, Center for Higher Learning Educational Achievement, and The Power 
Initiative; Michelle Edwards, MSHDA; Damon Fortney, GCMPC; James Gaskin, United Way; Cheryl Golidy, James-Moorehouse 
Inc.; Danielle Greene, SOF; Melton Harvey, Veterans Affairs; Debra Hayes, MBK; Denyatta Henry, McLaren Healthcare; 
Angela Hood-Beaugard, Literacy Network; Shelly Hoffman, SOF; James Hudgens, New Paths Inc.; Erika Humphrey, MCD; 
Tracey Hurd, MCD; Cindy Johns, Carriage Town Ministries; Kelly Judkins, Family Promise; Paul Kilgore, SOF; Lori Kunkel, 
Greater Flint Health Coalition; Charlotte Lancaster, Building Strong Women; Ebony Levy, GHS; Nikola Lucic, LSEM; Jamar 
McKenzie, FHC; Kevin Miller, City of Flint; Eula Morris, WINGSSS; Molly Mueller; Communities First; Beth Noye, Salvation 
Army; Jill Nylander’ LSEM; Cherise Pagels, Communities First; James Perlaki, Genesee County Youth Corporation;  Shelly Safi, 
Catholic Charities; Dinah Schaller, CRIM; Jessica Staton, REVIVE; Shearese Stapleton, Mothers Of Joy; Annie Swain, Red Cross; 
Marsha Thrower, MADE Institute; Jean Troop, GHS; Marie Jones-Watts, CRIM; Deontrae Wilson, MCD; Essence Wilson, 
Communities First;  Rayetta Wyatt, State of Michigan Veteran Services; Cheryl Zapfe, GISD; Sarah Zyburt, Voices for Children. 

 

I. WELCOME— Essence Wilson welcomed the Flint-Genesee County Continuum of Care members back 
from holiday break, then recited the mission. “A community working together to achieve access to safe 
and affordable housing for all residents of Genesee County.” Essence asked the CoC members to take a 
moment and look at last month’s meeting minutes and check their attendance, so we can ensure that 
records are correct.  
 

   II.  OLD BUSINESS:                                                                                                                                                       

A.    January 2023  minutes were approved. 
 

B. Governance Council update—Essence shared a conversation that she had with Attorney Kelly 
Bidleman and her concern that people are not using the homeless court program. She stated that 
there have been many folks who have worked hard to make sure that we have that resource in our 
community, and a lot of work went into it. The program is a great program. Everybody has agreed to 
that, but for some reason there was a lower utilization than what was expected. Essence informed the 
group that out of their conversation, they recognize that maybe the intervention was taking place at 
the wrong point, that a crisis in a shelter was maybe not the best place for it. And so, we thought 
about who would be able to better support individuals on the QBNL. 

 
Essence says the conversation evolved, and there was an application on the behalf of the CoC to 
GHS for a Housing Navigator that can hopefully provide some additional support to individuals on 
the QBNL while they’re waiting on housing resources to connect them to additional opportunities, 
including homeless court, including employment, accessing benefits connecting with SOAR and 
other programs. The agency that would host that position has not been determined. If the grant is 
awarded, then that would come before the CoC and there would be an opportunity for agencies that 
think they are best positioned to support in that way would have an opportunity to make their case 
and it would be voted on by the CoC. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                       



2 
 

C. Nominating Committee—Denise Diller explained the Governance Council’s (GC) slate of nominees 
that are to be voted on for approval. The slate is made up of 4 people who are currently on the 
Governance Council and would like to remain on the GC, and we have 2 additional people who have 
signed up to join the GC.  
 
1. Governance Council Slate was Approved. 

 

III.     NEW BUSINESS: 

A. ESG Funding 2023—Damon Fortney introduced himself and his coworker Anthony Kelly. He 
explained that Anthony will now be taking over on the ESG side of things. Damon went over ESG 
funding for 2023. He explained applications received and if they met requirements to receive money. 
Damon informed the group that the Executive Committee (EC) has recommended that he brings this 
to the full CoC body to request approval.  

        1. ESG Funding 2023 was Approved.                                           

 

IV. REPORTS:                                                               

A. Housing Assessment and Resource Agency: Please view HARA report. Misty stated that for the 
month of January, Catholic Charities had 3,427 incoming calls and 462 walk-ins. The homeless 
prevention program spent $4874.15 and assisted 8 people. The Rapid Re-housing program spent 
$7,124 and assisted 5 people. The Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program has 318 people on the 
waitlist. The Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) program has 14 names on the EHV waitlist. The 
Outreach program is out of funding. The CERA (COVID Emergency Rental Assistance) program at 
Catholic Charities is not financially assisting for the COVID Emergency Rental Assistance program. 
However, they are doing referrals to GCCARD and in 2 weeks we sent over 50 referrals.  

 
                         GCCARD -- The CERA (COVID Emergency Rental Assistance) program at GCCARD spent          

$515,704.63 on rent and utilities.  
         

B. Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI): No report submitted. The goal of the CQI is to 
determine and implement the best practice for an effectively functioning coordinated entry system. 
This committee is currently reviewing performance objectives. Meetings are 3rd Thursday at 1:00pm 
via ZOOM.  
 

C. Street Outreach: Jim Perlaki reported 11 requests for homeless verifications in January 2023. Nine 
of those were verified homeless. A total of 230 adults and youth were served this reporting period. 
The outreach team provided the neighborhood with about 150 emergency needs items. The 
outreach team was also actively involved with PIT count. 

 
D. Coordinated Entry System (CES): Please view CES report. Eric Cooper stated that he received 

99 CESA forms in the month of December . Eric sent out 12 referrals and 5 people were housed.  
 
E. HMIS: Please review HMIS report. The HMIS Administrators meeting is held on the first 

Thursday of the month at 11AM via ZOOM. All agencies who have a signed QSOBAA should 
participate in HMIS meetings.  

 

 



3 
 

 
F. Supplemental Social Security Income & Social Security Disability Insurance Outreach 

Access and Recovery (SOAR): Please view SOAR report. If interested in becoming a SOAR 
practitioner, please contact Bill Doub for more information at (810) 618-6045 or 
wdoub@genhs.org. SOAR training can be done in a group cohort or individually. The monthly 
SOAR meetings are held via ZOOM on the 3rd Thursday of every month at 10am. 

 
G. Fiscal Reports: The Fiscal Work Group Subcommittee has restarted. Meetings are held via 

ZOOM on the 4th Thursday of every month at 10 AM. Moving forward the Fiscal Work Group 
Chairperson will produce a report and what was discussed will be reported out at the next CoC 
monthly meeting. 

 
                                                                           

    V. OTHER BUSINESS: 

     A.      PIT count debrief—Erika Humphrey informed the group that PIT Count 2023 went well.     
Community support was Awesome. Thank you to all the volunteers. Please return all PIT Count 
paperwork to Travis by March 1st.  

       B.     Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)—Tracey Hurd stated that she has contacted those that have 
RRH (Rapid Re-Housing) and PSH (Permanent Supportive Housing) and asked them to have a 
meeting to look at the SOP manual that we put together last year. We will add, delete, and 
collaborate on what SOP’s look like for our county. We want to have continuity across all of our 
programming. 

       C.      Strategic Planning—Tracey Hurd reported that in December a very healthy discussion was had 
about strategic priorities. A follow-up meeting will be scheduled to determine how we want to 
choose our top 3 priorities out of the top 10 priorities discovered. We will then determine what 
funding we are going to pursue. 

     

VI. Announcements:           

                Sharing, Client Successes, announcements & opportunities, email for distribution: 

                 flint-geneseecoc@metroflint.org 

 

VII.   Adjournment:     

               Next meeting March 8, 2023 9:00 AM Location: Teleconference  

 

 

 

 

mailto:wdoub@genhs.org
mailto:flint-geneseecoc@metroflint.org


08:55:43 From  Cheryl golidygmail.com  to  Everyone:
        Cheryl Golidy present,  James-Moorehouse,
08:56:48 From  CoC Admin: Deontrae  to  Everyone:
        Good morning and welcome Wonderful Continuum of Care members. Please put name and organization in this 
chat box.
08:58:33 From  Dinah Schaller  to  Everyone:
        Good morning everyone. Dinah Schaller, Crim Fitness Foundation
08:58:37 From  Sarah Zyburt  to  Everyone:
        Sarah Zyburt, Voices for Children Advocacy Center
08:59:21 From  Rayetta Wyatt  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning Everyone, Rayetta Wyatt - State of Michigan/Veterans' Employment Services
09:00:21 From  Erika Humphrey, she, her  to  Everyone:
        Good morning! Erika Humphrey MCD
09:00:21 From  VeronCia Daffin  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning All! VeronCia Daffin-ESP Salvation Army
09:00:31 From  Cheryl Zapfe  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning, Cheryl Zapfe GISD
09:00:38 From  Nikola Lucic  to  Everyone:
        Good morning! Nikola Lucic, LSEM
09:00:43 From  james hudgens  to  Everyone:
        good morning Jim Hudgens New Paths, Inc.
09:00:45 From  Tina Counterman  to  Everyone:
        Tina Counterman, Sacred Heart Rehabilitation Center,  Good Morning :)
09:00:52 From  Travis Buckley  to  Everyone:
        Travis Buckley, MCD
09:01:02 From  ANTHONY BARKER  to  Everyone:
        Anthony Barker Hope Network Housing
09:01:18 From  Damon Fortney  to  Everyone:
        Damon Fortney and Anthony Kelly - GCMPC
09:01:28 From  Tracey Hurd  to  Everyone:
        Good morning Tracey Hurd, MCD
09:01:31 From  Michelle Edwards  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning Everyone!  Michelle Edwards-MSHDA
09:01:32 From  Danielle Greene  to  Everyone:
        Danielle Greene - SOF
09:01:39 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
        Bill Doub - Genesee Health System
09:01:45 From  Dwayne Clemons  to  Everyone:
        Dwayne Clemons HCHN
09:01:47 From  Kelly Judkins  to  Everyone:
        Family Promise Of Genesee County, Kelly Judkins
09:01:49 From  Judy Creed  to  Everyone:
        Judy Creed YWCA
09:01:57 From  Katie Baxter  to  Everyone:
        Good morning! Katie Baxter, Catholic Charities
09:02:00 From  Sonyita Clemons  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning 
        Mikesha Loring City of Flint
09:02:20 From  Gina DeShong  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning,  Gina DeShong The Disability Network
09:02:57 From  James Gaskin  to  Everyone:
        James Gaskin, United Way
09:03:16 From  Lori Kunkel  to  Everyone:



        Lori Kunkel, GFHC
09:03:41 From  James Perlaki  to  Everyone:
        Jim Perlaki, GCYC
09:03:44 From  Jamar McKenzie  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning, Jamar McKenzie Flint Housing Commission
09:04:28 From  Denise Diller  to  Everyone:
        Denise Diller, Crossover Outreach
09:04:49 From  Jean Troop  to  Everyone:
        Jean Troop, Genesee Community Health Center
09:04:58 From  Marsha Thrower  to  Everyone:
        Marsha Thrower, MADE Institute
09:05:35 From  Sonyita Clemons  to  Everyone:
        Sonyita Clemons, Total Life Prosperity Community Development Corporation
09:05:58 From  Misty Bowers  to  Everyone:
        Misty Bowers- Catholic Charities
09:06:14 From  Cherise Pagels  to  Everyone:
        Cherise Pagels, AmeriCorps member serving at Communities First Inc.
09:06:17 From  Shelly Hoffman  to  Everyone:
        Shelly Hoffman - Shelter of Flint
09:06:18 From  Marie Jones-Watts  to  Everyone:
        Marie Jones-Watts-Crim Fitness Foundation
09:08:15 From  Elizabeth Noye  to  Everyone:
        Elizabeth Noye, The Salvation Army
09:08:26 From  Shearese Stapleton  to  Everyone:
        Shearese Stapleton- MJ Institute
09:08:55 From  Jessica Staton  to  Everyone:
        Good Morning! Jessica Staton with Revive CHC of Flint.
09:09:48 From  Paul Kilgore  to  Everyone:
        Shelter of Flint - Paul Kilgore
09:10:13 From  Lori Kunkel  to  Everyone:
        Do we have a certain number of openings we are trying to fill?
09:10:16 From  Eric Cooper  to  Everyone:
        Eric Cooper - MCD
09:11:14 From  Lori Kunkel  to  Everyone:
        Thank you for the clarification
09:11:16 From  Denyatta Henry  to  Everyone:
        Denyatta Henry McLaren Health Care
09:11:45 From  Kevin Miller  to  Everyone:
        Kevin Miller - City of Flint
09:12:28 From  Kevin Miller  to  Everyone:
        Sonya McLaurin - City of Flint
09:12:39 From  maurice bush  to  Everyone:
        Maurice, Wellness Services
09:12:41 From  Ebony Levy  to  Everyone:
        Ebony Levy- GHS
09:13:04 From  Annie Swain  to  Everyone:
        Annie Swain, Red Cross, Disaster Program Manager
09:21:00 From  Molly Mueller  to  Everyone:
        Molly Mueller Communities First Inc.
09:22:50 From  James Gaskin  to  Everyone:
        UW funds some of the programs that individuals are connected with so its better for us to abstain
09:24:03 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
        Welcome Anthony
09:35:24 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:



        Thank You for screen sharing
09:37:20 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
        Excellent Work - Misty, Katie and Catholic Charities
09:38:13 From  Katie Baxter  to  Everyone:
        thank you Bill. Misty and her team do a great job!
09:38:54 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
        Amen!
09:39:49 From  Shearese Stapleton  to  Everyone:
        This is a really good meeting!
09:40:02 From  cindy johns  to  Everyone:
        Cindy Johns, Carriage Town Ministries
09:51:22 From  Jessica Staton  to  Everyone:
        Absolutely!
09:52:03 From  Erika Humphrey, she, her  to  Everyone:
        More PSH beds are needed for sure
09:52:07 From  Katie Baxter  to  Everyone:
        agreed Bill
09:55:46 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
        Are agencies attending the monthly QBNL?
09:56:24 From  Misty Bowers  to  Everyone:
        Catholic Charities is attending the QBNL
09:57:47 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
        Attendance is required for funded entities- HUD, City/CountyESG and MSHDA
09:58:10 From  Jessica Staton  to  Everyone:
        Reacted to "Attendance is requirâ€¦" with ðŸ‘
09:58:13 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
 We are in attendance and it usually Misty and Jodi from my staff. If you don't attend, don't complain.
09:58:28 From  Jessica Staton  to  Everyone:
 I am HMIS certified and would like to attend the meetings for the benefit of our community.
09:59:03 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
 Each committee report should list attendees
10:00:19 From  VeronCia Daffin  to  Everyone:
 Got to jump off early.  See you next month
10:01:10 From  Denyatta Henry  to  Everyone:
 I have to jump off for another meeting. Please let me know if this recording is available to all.
10:01:28 From  Travis Buckley  to  Everyone:
 HMIS: 1st Thursday of every month @ 11am. QBNL is every 3rd Tuesday @10:30am
10:02:08 From  Shearese Stapleton  to  Everyone:
 Did I miss time to speak. Regarding the Fiscal group?
10:02:18 From  james hudgens  to  Everyone:
 I need to log for another meeting, take care
10:03:43 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
 The contract for HUD and MSHDA require participation in CE and the QBNL(interagency Service team) as well 
as HMIS
10:03:57 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
 I must leave for another engagement - have a nice day Genesee county :)
10:05:19 From  Lori Kunkel  to  Everyone:
 I think meeting participation of funded organizations needs to be looked at further. General attendance isn't leading 
to the CoC operating at it needs to. The Fiscal Committee has the same issues.
10:09:10 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
 I agree Lori
10:10:56 From  Angela Hood  to  Everyone:
 We can meet offline and trouble shoot and simplify this process for you and Leon. I have emailed him before about 
it.



10:11:48 From  Katie Baxter  to  Everyone:
 Bill, thank you for your expertise and training on SOAR, important service
10:12:24 From  Essence Wilson  to  Everyone:
 I also agree, Lori.  I'll send you an email to see if you would be interested/available to support some of the 
additional work that needs to happen to move that along quicker.
10:14:39 From  Denise Diller  to  Everyone:
 Have to drop off for another meeting. Thanks everyone for all you do in community to uplift those experiencing 
hardships of all kinds.  Blessings & Gratitude!!!
10:15:09 From  Shearese Stapleton  to  Everyone:
 Thank yall. For a great meeting!!
10:15:32 From  Erika Humphrey, she, her  to  Everyone:
 EHUMPHREY@METROFLINT.ORG for any PIT questions
10:17:08 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
 We use a lot of initials in our meetings and we have a changing cast of attendees. Can we please send out a 
glossary of terms??? CESA = Coordinating Entry  Screen Assessment.
10:18:25 From  Katie Baxter  to  Everyone:
 true Bill, would be helpful
10:19:08 From  cindy johns  to  Everyone:
 I would agree also.  It is hard to keep track of them.
10:20:18 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
 SOAR Stakeholder Meeting is scheduled for next Thursday, February 16th at 10:00 am. We are an active 
workgroup and welcome your questions.
10:20:46 From  William Doub  to  Everyone:
 We used to have such an animal called a Gaps Analysis.
10:21:50 From  Essence Wilson  to  Everyone:
 Report from TLG and the meeting date will be sent out today.



                         
 
                             Sub-Committees, H.A.R.A., Work Groups, Financial Reports                                  

  

  
 

  Monthly Report Submissions 
March 8, 2023 

 
 

Housing Assessment and Resource Agency (H.A.R.A.) – Misty Bowers  

Genesee County Community Action Resource Department (GCCARD) – Shardae Davis 

*GCCARD CERA numbers included in the HARA report 

Coordinated Entry System (CES)/QBNL –Eric Cooper 

Social Security Outreach Accessibility and Recovery (SOAR) – Bill Doub 

 

Financial Reports:  

MSHDA – Shelly Safi 

County ESG – Anthony Kelley 

 

No Reports:  

Continuous Quality Improvement and Street Outreach – Jim Perlaki  

HMIS – Travis Buckley 

HUD – Erika Humphrey 

City of Flint – Kevin Miller 

 



Catholic Charities of Shiawassee & Genesee Counties 
One Stop Housing Monthly Report 

February 2023 
 
Intake Specialist: 

-Front Desk 
 

2,991- Total Incoming Calls  

 351- Walk-Ins 
 

Homeless Prevention: 
HP-  

• Utility Assistance- $ 515.19 
• Rent Assistance- $ 1,570.00 
• Emergency Motel- $ 315.35 

o Total Spent- $ 2,400.54/4-Assisted 
 
    
Housing Choice Voucher & Emergency Housing Vouchers: & Moving Up  

HCV, EHV, MU  
 
 HCV   

• 297- on the HCV waitlist as March 6th   
   
*Becka management pulled from the HCV Homeless Preference waitlist on 2-28-23 & pulled 30 names. 
They pulled up to July 28, 2022 

 
 

EHV 

• 36 of 35 -Leased Up & some pending 
•  14 Names on the EHV waitlist 
• CMA Inc. last pulled on 8-29-22/ 7 people 

 

MU 

No one on the waitlist 

 
 
Outreach: -EFSP 

Cyndi McDoniel 
• Utility Assistance- $ 88.40 
• Rent Assistance- $1,355.84 

• Total spent- $1,444.24/3 Assisted 



Catholic Charities of Shiawassee & Genesee Counties 
One Stop Housing Monthly Report 

February 2023 
 
 

 

Covid Emergency Rental Assistance Program (C.E.R.A): 
The Program officially started March 15, 2021.  

• Catholic Charities- No Assistance 

 

GCCARD- CERA Report 

Covid Emergency Rental Assistance Program (C.E.R.A): 

February 2023 

• CERA Rent: $ 504,424.04 
• CERA Utilities: $ 67,019.95 

o Total Spent- $ 571,443.99 
 

 73 CERA referrals sent to GCCARD from Catholic Charities 

 

PBV- Willow Haven I & II 

All PBV units leased up 
 

Warming Center 

• December Day Time-- Average 78 people per day 
• December Nighttime—Average 85 people per night 

*7 nights with over 100+ people 

 

• January Day Time—Average 99 people per day 
• January Nighttime-- Average 96 people per night 

*14 night with over 100+ people 



Page 1 of 2 
 

CES Update 
Date: February 2023 

1. a) Chair Name: submitted by Eric Cooper       b) Co-chair Name: 

2. Purpose:  Development of an implementation policy and strategy for QBNL within in the Flint/Genesee County 

CoC. 

3. a) Meeting Date:               b) Frequency: Monthly  

Attendees: Click to tap here to enter text. 

4. Goals (short term/ long term):  

a. Short term: Effectively manage the QBNL and ensure that all data is accurate and up to date. 

b. Long term: Effective prioritization plan for those individuals to ensure highest vulnerability individuals are 

housed first. To end the cycle of homelessness for our community. 

5. Outcomes: 

A. Quantitative:  

1. CESA forms received from February 1, 2023- February 28, 2023, = 81 

a)  Comments: CESA’s from partner agencies are continuing (MBK, Carriage Town, Shelter of 

Flint, YWCA, and Street Outreach.) Clients continue form all shelters/community continue to 

utilize Metro Community Development HELP hotline.  

2. Referrals Out from February 1, 2023 – February 28, 2023 = 11 

a)        My Brother’s Keeper –  

b) GCYC –  

c)        GHS – 5 (3 PSH, 2 RRH) 

d) SOF – 2 (VLUP) 

e)         Catholic Charities –  

f)    Flint Housing Commission:   

g)        MCD –  

h) Berkley Place/PBV-  

i) Traverse Place-  

j) YWCA- 4 (RRH) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

3. Housed MTD February 2023:   

a) FHC  

b) GHS-  

c) PBV-  

d) SOF –  

e) MBK-  

f) MCD:  

g) Catholic Charities:  

1. RRH:  

2. EHV:  

3. HCV:  

4. Housed YTD with CES – 5* 
a) GHS – 5 (RRH) 

b) Shelter of Flint – (RRH and Rosewood, VLUP) 

c) MCD – (TBRA) 

d) GCYC –  

e) Catholic Charities – (EHV) 

f) Swayze Court- (PSH) 

g) PBV-Willowhaven- (PSH) 

h) PBV-Berkley Place- (PSH) 

i) MBK- (RRH) 

j) HCV-MSHDA- 

k) HCV-Flint Housing Commission- (PSH) 

 

B. Qualitative:  QBNL of Genesee County housed the most vulnerable clients first.  

 

C. Observations, Comparisons/Trends: For the month of February, the number of clients on the QBNL 

increased with more singles than families. CE received fewer CESA’s and sent out less referrals in February 

than January. We are still experiencing a significant increase in clients from the Warming Center which 

opened 12/1. Clients who receive vouches continue to have difficulties finding suitable and affordable 

housing. All in all, this was a productive month for CE and we look forward to continuing great service to our 

communities.  

 
 



SOAR Workgroup Report  

 For Stakeholder Meeting held on 2/17/2023 

 

Attendees: Maurice Bush, Bill Doub, Zuzanna Gos-Henderson, Cherise Pagels, 
Alisha Pennington, Richard Powers, Deontrae Wilson. 

Open and Welcome—Bill Doub 

1. Goals: 
a. Short term: Increase the number of SOAR Trained staff using SOAR 

Principles and Methodology to assist with applying for benefits.  
b. Long term:  Establish a network of SOAR trained staff and SOAR 

Stakeholders to assist SHP housing recipients and other vulnerable 
individuals with applying for benefits. 

 
2. Outcomes: 

a. Quantitative:  1) Increase the number of approvals for clients 
receiving Federal, State, and local benefits; 2) increase the number of 
SOAR Trained staff assisting SHP clients with applying for benefits. 3) 
Increase the amount of dollars returned to the County as a direct 
benefit utilizing SOAR.   

b. Qualitative: Establishment of a network of SOAR – Trained Cadre to 
assist individual clients with applying for Federal and State benefits. 
 

3. Results: One Approval resulting from a referral from the Greater Flint Health 
Coalition. Sixteen claims using SOAR process, Consent to Release Information 
and methodology are in process.   
 
 

Key Point: 

• From Zuzanna: Getting medical records have not been easy. 
• From Bill: If you need help getting medical records; get a signed Release Of Information 

that includes Genesee Health Systems and he can help. 
• From Bill: FYI…When a medical records department sees “social security” attached to a 

request they’re going to ask you to pay. Bill suggests using “coordination of care”. 
• From Bill: Your client can go with you to the hospital and request records through 

patient portal. 
• From Alisha: A lot of DDS examiners have had their phone numbers changed. Download 

the new list that was provided. 
 
 
 



SOAR Works Training (provides 20 CEUs) 

o Training can be done individually or in a group cohort 
o There is a SOAR cheat-sheet in Module 12- Bill can send this if 

interested 
o Group discussion focused on the amount of time needed to complete 

the training. Yes…There is a lot of paperwork time involved; however, 
the process works and the result, that of becoming a credentialed 
SOAR Provider is critical for clients to sustain their housing. 

 
• Bill Doub’s contact info 

o Phone- 810 618-6045 
o Email- wdoub@genhs.org 

 

Next Meeting: Thursday, March 16th at 10 AM 

 

mailto:wdoub@genhs.org


Flint/Genesee County Continuum of Care Financial Reporting Designates jeopardy of being underspent 20% or more

Reporting Period Ending: 1/31/2023 Designates caution for being underspent 10%-20%

Designates contract on line as projected within 10%

Funding Program Fiduciary Start Date End Date

Months 

Into Grant

Months Left 

Remaining

Projected % 

to be Spent Grant Amount Spent YTD Remaining % Spent % Remaining Reporting Date Population Served/Service(s) Provided

2020 MSHDA C-19
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2020 6/30/2023 28 5 85% $84,175.00 $84,175.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and extremely poor in Genesee County through emergency shelter, food, clothing, 

medical services, case management, to prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19.

2021 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2021 2/28/2023 16 1 94% $20,452.00 $20,452.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and extremely poor in Genesee County through emergency shelter, food, clothing, 

medical services, case management, housing and job assistance, on-the-job training, and educational 

classes.

2022 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2022 9/30/2023 4 8 33% $19,632.00 $0.00 $19,632.00 0.0% 100.0% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and extremely poor in Genesee County through emergency shelter, food, clothing, 

medical services, case management, housing and job assistance, on-the-job training, and educational 

classes.

2020 MSHDA C-19
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2020 6/30/2023 28 5 85% $484,168.00 $430,572.50 $53,595.50 88.9% 11.1% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless or at risk of becoming homeless populations in Genesee County. Hotel/motel vouchers, 

homelessness prevention and rapid rehousing, case management and financial/rental assistance, HMIS and 

administration by working to prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19.

2021 MSHDA EHV
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
7/1/2021 9/30/2023 16 8 67% $114,000.00 $70,525.33 $43,474.67 61.9% 38.1% 1/31/2023

Provide case management and financial assistance to and for income-qualified persons and eligible 

households in Genesee County who are experiencing homelessness or at risk of experiencing homelessness 

or having high risk of housing instability due to the COVID-19.

2022 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2022 9/30/2023 8 4 67% $158,495.00 $0.00 $158,495.00 0.0% 100.0% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and extremely poor in Genesee County through emergency shelter, food, clothing, 

medical services, case management, housing and job assistance, on-the-job training, and educational 

classes.

2021 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2021 2/28/2023 15 1 94% $165,088.00 $149,010.00 $16,078.00 90.3% 9.7% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and at risk of becoming homeless populations in Genesee County. Homelessness 

prevention and rapid rehousing, case management and financial/rental assistance, HMIS and 

administration.

2022 ESG-CV Shelter 

Ops

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 6/30/2023 8 4 67% $60,872.00 $0.00 $60,872.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

Serving homeless and at risk of becoming homeless populations in Genesee County. Homelessness 

prevention and rapid rehousing, case management and financial/rental assistance, HMIS and 

administration.

Fa
m

ily
 P

ro
m

is
e

2022 ESG-CV Shelter 

Improvements

GENESEE 

COUNTY
7/1/2022 6/30/2023 8 4 67% $162,000.00 $61,220.13 $100,779.87 37.8% 62.2% 3/3/2023

2022 ESG 

Homelessness 

Prevention

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $21,497.00 $0.00 $21,497.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

2022 ESG-CV 

Homelessness 

Prevention

GENESEE 

COUNTY
7/1/2022 6/30/2023 8 4 67% $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

2022 ESG Shelter 

Operations

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $30,015.00 $12,820.46 $17,194.54 42.7% 57.3% 3/3/2023 Essential services for REACH 8 bed shelter for youth ages 10-17

2020 MSHDA C-19
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2020 6/30/2023 28 5 85% $177,866.00 $128,315.54 $49,550.46 72.1% 27.9% 1/31/2023

8 units of apartment housing assistance and case management for youth ages 18-25 referred through the 

CE system

2021 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2021 2/28/2023 12 5 71% $20,453.00 $20,453.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023 Essential services for REACH 8 bed shelter for youth ages 10-17

2022 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2022 9/30/2023 8 4 67% $19,632.00 $8,117.41 $11,514.59 41.3% 58.7% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and extremely poor in Genesee County through emergency shelter, food, clothing, 

medical services, case management, housing and job assistance, on-the-job training, and educational 

classes.

Homeless Street 

Outreach
METRO 4/1/2022 3/31/2023 9 3 75% $107,217.00 $72,650.96 $34,566.04 67.8% 32.2% 1/31/2023

Street outreach services throughout Genesee County providing homeless verifications in partnership with 

the HARA and CE system, basic needs assistance, crisis intervention, and case management referrals for 

ending homelessness

Transitional Living - 

Youth
METRO 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 6 6 50% $126,654.00 $62,003.82 $64,650.18 49.0% 51.0% 1/31/2023

Traverse Place 8 bed congregate living and 6 bed scattered site graduated housing providing transitional 

living housing, case management, life skills training, and counseling for youth ages 17-21 for up to 21 

months
Transitional Living 

RRH - Youth
METRO 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 3 9 25% $198,593.00 $43,328.29 $155,264.71 21.8% 78.2% 1/31/2023

12 units of apartment housing assistance and case management for youth ages 18-25 referred through the 

CE system

Lease-up METRO 8/1/2022 7/31/2023 3 9 25% $388,502.00 $98,714.31 $289,787.69 25.4% 74.6% 1/31/2023

Rapid Rehousing METRO 8/1/2022 7/31/2023 5 7 42% $261,851.00 $82,139.54 $179,711.46 31.4% 68.6% 1/31/2023

2022 ESG Shelter 

Operations

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $7,505.00 $7,505.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 3/3/2023

2022 Shelter 

Improvements

GENESEE 

COUNTY
7/1/2022 6/30/2023 2 10 17% $67,200.00 $4,100.59 $63,099.41 6.1% 93.9% 3/3/2023

2022 ESG HMIS
GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $7,817.00 $0.00 $7,817.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

C
ar

ri
ag

e 
To

w
n

C
at

h
o

lic
 C

h
ar

it
ie

s
G

e
n

e
se

G
en

es
e

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 Y
o

u
th

 C
o

rp
o

ra
ti

o
n

M
e

tr
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

G
G

C
A

R
D

M
ad

e 

In
st

it
u

te



Flint/Genesee County Continuum of Care Financial Reporting Designates jeopardy of being underspent 20% or more

Reporting Period Ending: 1/31/2023 Designates caution for being underspent 10%-20%

Designates contract on line as projected within 10%

Funding Program Fiduciary Start Date End Date

Months 

Into Grant

Months Left 

Remaining

Projected % 

to be Spent Grant Amount Spent YTD Remaining % Spent % Remaining Reporting Date Population Served/Service(s) Provided

C
ar

ri
ag

e 
To

w
n 2022 HOME - TBRA

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $70,232.00 $0.00 $70,232.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

2020 MSHDA C-19
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2020 6/30/2023 28 5 85% $3,317.00 $3,317.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023

Coordinated Entry METRO 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 6 6 50% $124,374.00 $28,752.62 $95,621.38 23.1% 76.9% 1/31/2023

CoC Planning METRO 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 3 9 25% $138,650.00 $26,610.90 $112,039.10 19.2% 80.8% 1/31/2023

HMIS METRO 11/1/2022 10/30/2023 2 10 17% $89,577.00 $11,160.79 $78,416.21 12.5% 87.5% 1/31/2023

2022 ESG Shelter 

Operations

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $23,450.00 $0.00 $23,450.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

2022 ESG-CV Shelter 

Improvements

GENESEE 

COUNTY
7/1/2022 6/30/2023 8 4 67% $39,467.00 $24,704.40 $14,762.60 62.6% 37.4% 3/3/2023

2020 MSHDA C-19
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2020 6/30/2023 28 5 85% $142,229.00 $121,086.57 $21,142.43 85.1% 14.9% 1/31/2023

2022 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2022 9/30/2023 8 4 67% $44,371.00 $0.00 $44,371.00 0.0% 100.0% 1/31/2023

2021 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2021 2/28/2023 15 1 94% $46,222.00 $46,222.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023

2022 ESG Shelter 

Operations

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $17,822.00 $0.00 $17,822.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

Essential services and operations at 70-bed emergency family homelessness shelter serving parent(s) with 

children and single women. Funding covers staff salaries, insurance, maintenance, utilities, security, and 

bus passes.
2022 ESG-CV Shelter 

Ops

GENESEE 

COUNTY
7/1/2022 6/30/2023 8 4 67% $181,661.00 $34,410.13 $147,250.87 18.9% 81.1% 3/3/2023

2020 MSHDA C-19
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2020 6/30/2023 28 5 85% $174,379.00 $174,379.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023

To respond to and prevent COVID within the family emergency homelessness shelter serving parent(s) with 

children and single women. Funding covers beds, dividers, hazard pay, COVID Educator, case management, 

fogger solution, masks, bed, food, and admin.

2021 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2021 2/28/2023 15 1 94% $20,454.00 $20,454.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 1/31/2023

Essential services and operations at emergency family homelessness shelter serving parent(s) with children 

and single women. Funding covers resident assistant staffing, insurance, and utilities.

2022 MSHDA ESG
CATHOLIC 

CHARITIES
10/1/2022 9/30/2023 4 8 33% $19,632.00 $0.00 $19,632.00 0.0% 100.0% 1/31/2023

Serving homeless and extremely poor in Genesee County through emergency shelter, food, clothing, 

medical services, case management, housing and job assistance, on-the-job training, and educational 

classes.
Chronic Homeless 

Family
METRO 4/1/2022 3/31/2023 9 3 75% $107,211.00 $77,666.68 $29,544.32 72.4% 27.6% 1/31/2023

Case management and rental support for chronically homeless individuals and families with qualifying 

disability and income.
Veterans Lease-up METRO 4/1/2022 3/31/2023 9 3 75% $118,679.00 $75,960.47 $42,718.53 64.0% 36.0% 1/31/2023 Case management and rental support for veterans with qualifying disability and income.

CoC Lease-up METRO 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 6 6 50% $294,765.00 $145,655.86 $149,109.14 49.4% 50.6% 1/31/2023
Case management and rental support for homeless individuals and families with qualifying disability and 

income.
Manor METRO 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 6 6 50% $70,854.00 $33,363.45 $37,490.55 47.1% 52.9% 1/31/2023 Case management for homeless individuals and families with qualifying disability and income.

Lease-up METRO 8/1/2022 7/31/2023 5 7 42% $131,957.00 $58,513.92 $73,443.08 44.3% 55.7% 1/31/2023
Case management and rental support for homeless individuals and families with qualifying disability and 

income.

Community Lease-up METRO 8/1/2022 7/31/2023 3 9 25% $124,153.00 $56,178.71 $67,974.29 45.2% 54.8% 1/31/2023
Case management and rental support for homeless individuals and families with qualifying disability and 

income.

2022 ESG Shelter 

Operations

GENESEE 

COUNTY
9/1/2022 8/31/2023 6 6 50% $15,010.00 $0.00 $15,010.00 0.0% 100.0% 3/3/2023

TH/RRH METRO 10/1/2022 3/31/2024 3 15 17% $244,517.00 $1,337.47 $243,179.53 0.5% 99.5% 1/31/2023Y
W

C
A

M
y 

B
ro

th
er

's
 K

ee
p

er
Sh

el
te

r 
o

f 
Fl

in
t

M
e

tr
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

e
n

t



Agency Activity Award Disbursed Balance
% of grant

spent
% of grant 
remaining

Contract End Date

MBK 2022 ESG Shelter Operations $23,450.00 $0.00 $23,450.00 0.0% 100.0% 8/31/2023

2022 ESG-CV Shelter Improvements $39,467.00 $24,704.40 $14,762.60 62.6% 37.4% 6/30/2023

Shelter of Flint 2022 ESG Shelter Operations $17,822.00 $0.00 $17,822.00 0.0% 100.0% 8/31/2023

2022 ESG-CV Shelter Ops $181,661.00 $34,410.13 $147,250.87 18.9% 81.1% 6/30/2023

Metro 2022 ESG HMIS $7,817.00 $0.00 $7,817.00 0.0% 100.0% 8/31/2023

2022 HOME TBRA $70,232.00 $0.00 $70,232.00 0.0% 100.0% 8/31/2023

GCYC 2022 ESG Shelter Operations $30,015.00 $12,820.46 $17,194.54 42.7% 57.3% 8/31/2023

GCCARD 2022 ESG Homelessness Prevention $21,497.00 $0.00 $21,497.00 0.0% 100.0% 8/31/2023

2022 ESG-CV Homelessness Prevention $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.0% 100.0% 6/30/2023

Catholic Charities 2022 ESG-CV Shelter Ops $60,872.00 $0.00 $60,872.00 0.0% 100.0% 6/30/2023

Family Promise 2022 ESG-CV Shelter Improvements $162,000.00 $61,220.13 $100,779.87 37.8% 62.2% 6/30/2023

MADE Institute 2022 ESG Shelter Operations $7,505.00 $7,505.00 $0.00 100.0% 0.0% 8/31/2022

2022 Shelter Improvements $67,200.00 $4,100.59 $63,099.41 6.1% 93.9% 6/30/2023

YWCA 2022 ESG Shelter Operations $15,010.00 $0.00 $15,010.00 0.0% 100.0% 8/31/2022

Genesee County - 2022 ESG/HOME Spending Report - as of 3/3/23


	March 2023 CoC Agenda Draft
	Wednesday, March 8, 2022

	February 8. 2023 CoC meeting minutes
	2.8.23 meeting_saved_chat
	Subcommitee lead sheet 3.8.23
	February 2023 HARA Report
	QBNL Monthly Management February 2023 
	SOAR CoC 2-17-2023 Monthly Workgroup Report Bill Doub
	CoC Financial Report - Shelly
	ESG Spending Report 3.3.23

